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in the 18930 certain Ferdinand Porsche
set up small autornobile design company
winch later became known as the Porsche
E'L.'I 0. In 19371 Porsche designed streamili-
ned sedan for Zindapp motorcycle corm-
;_'-a.'w but this project was never realised.
In 1833 Porsche then designed another
Streamiined car for NSU. This car looked
very .E-‘.l.".rT."."E'r" to the Lzechoslovak Iatra
1-""5 :‘L-J No wonder - Hans Ledwink
was designer-in-chief of Tatra, was very
close friend of Ferdinand Porsche. Never-
theless, even this project was dropped.
L.arF-" in 1833, Porsche ."-ar"pEr'-Er:r ta me-
t Adolf Hitler and discussed with him the
.-rjnr_'.i of Volkswagen, or people’s car. This
was an opportu ty for Porsche to push
his idea of & small car forward, as was it
Hitler get a real people’s car for
the citizens of Herch.




During the years 1935 and 15936 Forsche built several prototypes of
Volkswagen which were extensively tested. Construction of KdF [Kraft
durch Freude or Strength through Joyl car factory began in 1838.
in 1939, when the pre-production VW38 cars were introduced, Hitler
changed the VW to KdF Wagen. After occupation of Czechoslovakia in
March 189389, Porsche was ordered to develop military version of the
VIW. The production of civiian car, which however never progressed
behind the pre-production stage, was postponed and all the effort was
concentrated to war production, KdF Type 82 known as Kibelwagen.
The new vehicle was given the military nomenclature Kfz. 1 or leichter
Personenkraftwagen K1 Typ 82. Series production of KdF 82 Kubel-
wagen was ordered to started in February 1840, but the KdF factory
in Wolfsburg was not equipped for complete series production yet and
body panels had to be pressed in Berlin.

Right picture shows spare wheel carrier typical for the 1838 version,
compare with picture shown on the page 10.
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Kibelwagen utilised the same engine like VW38, petrol flat four cylinder air cooled four stroke 885 em3 engine giving 23,5 HP
by 3000 rpm, having 70 mm x 64 mm bore x stroke. Maximum speed of the vehicle was 80 kph [50 mph] and maximum
gradient was 24 degrees. Transmission has 4 forward and one reverse gears with two wheel drive. Since March 18943,
the KdF 82 has been fitted with new engine hawving bore increased to 75 mm resulting in the overall volume 1131 cm3, which
increased power-to-weight ratio.

Front axle, one of Porsche's masterpieces, consists of two transversal tubes containing seven torsion leafs and two trai-
fing arms on each side. This concept of independent front wheel suspension was much highter than most other common Ly
pes of suspension.




Hear driven swinging axles are suspended by two torsion bars. Une of many advantages was reduction gear located in the rear
wheel hubs giving 80 mm higher ground clearance. This, and also the fiat bottom of the body, gave the vehicle excellent cross-
country ability comparabie with four wheel drive vehicles. The light simple four-door body with canvas top was developed in Berli-
ner coachwork ABP (Ambi-Budd-Presswerke] in the end of 1838, Weight of the car was 685 - 750 kg depending on instalied
accessortes, the vehicle maximum overall weight was up to 1160 kg. The vehicle is equipped with BV electrical equipment, on
the radio-equipped vehicles the electrical installation was shielded with alurminium armature.

The KdfF 80 was used by alf arms of the Wehrmacht and more than 52 000 vehicles (52 018 according to some sources) we-
re completed by the end of the war. These vehicles were perfectly suited in desert conditions as well as the vast Russian step-
pes. Due to its low weight the vehicle seldom got bogged down in sand dunes or mud and when it turned over it could be put
back on its wheels by only two men. Kibelwagen was used in many roles during the war. The most common was probably staff
and light reconnaissance car, often armed with Mg 34 gun. Other roles of this versatile car were light ambulance, ammunition
carrier, radio transrmitter, light repair car and also some special versions appeared like f. e. Typ 155 Raupe, fitted with tracks
instead of rear wheels.




Front registration number plates were always painted on the nose of the body, despite the body colour and production year, see
feft bottom picture on the opposite page. In the early years of the war the rear registration number was painted on the sheet
metal plate fixed on the engine cover, see page 2 on the bottom. In March 1843, the engine cover was modified shortening
two left mouldings and since that moment also the rear registration number plate was painted on the cover directly.

Note also the tire pressure values located on the mudguards. Tire pressure marking was 1,4 Atd at the front and 1,8 Atl at
the rear where At means atmosphere. If the low pressure 680-200) sand Lires were used the front tire pressure was 0,8 Atl
and the rear was 1,2 Atd. Tire pressure marking was usually white on dark grey body or black on sand or dark yellow body.
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Camoufiage colours shown where were used mostly on the Eastern Front. Camouflage pattern did not have any exact rules and
location and shape of different fields was up to painter's fantasy.
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black field on the front door is typical for the second half of the war. This particular marking indicates that this Kubel belonged

to 4th Battery of 152nd Artillery Regiment, 7th Division Skifgger.




mier shown here was used teft bottorn picture as well as the horn, shown on the nght pictures. This
e ﬁ"_ ont cover made of pressed sheet metal and the body made of brown ba
also head iights made by Bosch. E trical cable s connectad to the rear

since March 1843,
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iz ':hr' ea :."ﬂ. orne was co .""l,,':.uﬁ'.,.e?n‘p' made of ba-
part: of the figh

s pr’ CrEw connector




The universal field shovel shown on the bottomn feft and top right pictures is bearing the stamp REICH TEPLITZ 18945, The rear
view mirror shown on the top left picture i1s not orignal and was reconstructed according to the available reference materials.




No jer n holder was factory installed and if there
were some, It was always field modification. The hol-
der shown on upper pictureés was reconstructed
according conternparary war pictureas.

Baottom pictures show the air intake located on the re-
ar part of engine cover. It enables the air to be suc-
ked off the cab compartment. The two clamps are
used for fixing the foided cab frame.
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German vehicle used during the
war, werg used in n','.l.'.f: K ::l.,r.g conditions. In 1ken-
sity of the front light could be adjusted using
rheostat on the dashboard. The rear light con-
sisted of

The upper 4 green .I'.'ﬁn".'.“.'-: were used when dr-
ving in colurnn. If the driver was in correct di-
stance to the vehicle going in front of him he
saw those four lights as two dots.

vWhen he saw all four green dots, he

was too near and when he saw all four

he was too far. Lower

ar position nght and the yel-

rake fight. The lower light

.:r_:lr_.u’f." be .r'l---r'c'.;'l' with the folding ﬂ'ﬂr-
showing only brake fight through the

Emm opeming. Note also the stamps on

| g plate.




The part of each vehicle accessory was canvas cover which not on-

ly protected the folded windscreen but also reduced glare.

The folded windscreen was fixed in position by means of two spring
clamps, picture top right. In the upper position the windscreen was
fixed by two wing nuls, picture bottom right.

Pictures on this page show the folding
windscreen. It was folded especially to
mcrease the wsibiity during night blac-
kout conditions or to reduce the overall
|".I:_T.'."_r_;'hi!:,




To protect the windscreen against |
freezing the universal heating frame
could be installed just putting its four
clamps behind the rubber window se&-
aling. The frame is connected with
efectrical system by means of cable
and standard connector on dashbo-
ard. On the left side of the frame the-
re is the main switch and 6712 V
switch. This frarme could be seen on
rmany German vehicles.

The windshield frame was connected
with the canvas top frame By two B
clamps, pictures on the left.The @
shown windshield wiper engines, right
bottorm picture, are as instslled in
factory, painted with black enarmel,
with bakelite switch lever. Because of
the high gloss enarmel the cover were
often repainted with body paint. The
pressed letters on the fuel tank be-
long to the fuel main and inadicates po-
sition of main fuel cock [Kratftstoff-
hahn Steliung or fuel cock adjust-
ment]. A is for Reserve [spare] £
means Zu [closed] and A means Auf
(open]. Tank capacity 40 litres, giving
the range of 400 - 450 km. For the
fuel cock detail see also page 28.
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Pictures on this page show several stages
of folded canvas top frame. Three main
bows indicate that the vehicle was built in
the second half of the war, the older Kibels
have the middle bow not installed.




Hetaining rod of baggage compartment cover, upper left pic-
ture, is the same like the one on engine cover, enabling to fix
the cover in two position. Side lockers are used for storing of
removable side windows.

Fictures on this page show the baggage compartment behind
the rear seats. Removable cover on the bottorn of baggage
compartment enables removing of the engine starter, the obli-
qgue cover in the rear wall is used for better sccess to coil
These cover were not installed on vehicles made before March
18943.
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Basic vehicular tool set includes also hydrome-
ter, opposite page bottom right, and tire purmp,
opposite page top. The empty clamps located on
the cover of engine compartment were used for
fixing the starting crank which is unfortunately
ot in this particular vehicle inventory.

The engine compartment is used also for staring
the spare ol can and jack, top left picture. The
tool looking like ailer located next to the spar of
can Is aropper containing engine fuel and is used
for starting the engines in desert conditions, see
also the next page.
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Ury centrifugal air hiter shown on pictures above was typical feature of KdF equ
ipped for desert use, as well as a small can on intake manifold knee. This can
contained engine fugl and helped to enrich to mixture of air and fuel in the hot
weather. The can was filled using the dropper shown on the pre

le can, si

hawn here right to the carburelttor, containing
The fuel level was adjusted shifting the

The KdF engine is also fitted for winter starts. For this purpo

G ngine fuel or ether.
can downwards or upwsards and ether
was mixed with fuel using the mixing cock located above the fuel




The standard jack made by Bilstein was deliverad
with two different cranks, both shown on the pictu-
re below.

T e R, CTRA. B f
Naote the tire pump installation on the on the cover of engine
compartment, the empty clamps next to the pump should fix
the starting crank.

Bottorn left picture shows the fuel dropper and original oil can
while on the bottom right picture there is still plasticnbottle with
spare oil used on current drives.




Pictures on these two pages show the Kubelwagen interior. The seats are fixed by two wing nuts each and could be easily
removed. The seat cushion of the front seats has 16 coil springs, the rear back rest has & vertical struts. The room under
the seats was used for storing the personal kits of the crew members. Driver had his kit in the floor locker in front of gears-
hift while the room under his seat was used to store the kit of crew member seating on the rear sealt behind fum as there
was accumulator located under the back rear seat.

Left pictures show rear and front door on the right side. The handles inside are the same [ike outside. When the inside handle
is in vertical position the door are locked against opening.
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The ball handle on gearshift lever is made of bakelite and
bears the Volkswagen emblem used during the war periog,
similar emblem s located also in upper part of speedome-
ter gauge. Two bakelite boxes on the dashboard sides, left
and right to the speedometer, contain fuses. Light switches
are located in the lower corners of central bakelite shield
with speedometer. The knob in the lower right corner is No-
tek light rheostat, in the left lower corner there is starter

knob and accessory socket.

Fictures on the opposite page show the dashboard and the
space below it. The open compartment in front of gearshift
lever was used for storing driver's belongings and its dime-
nsions allowed to put in the standard 20 [ jerrycan.

On the left body side there is a 260 x 80 x 160 mm box
for storing driver's and vehicle’s documents.

ot : e 6. - .
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Windshield vipers engines are connected to electrical system by
means of cables aflowing to fold the windscreen,
see also page 15.
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Compare the original oval dashboard, picture above, used on the
first series of Kubelwagen with the newer one, installed during the
second half of the war, picture on the top. The newer square dash-
board is identical with the one installed on KdF type 166 Schwirmm-
wagen.
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S The first aid kit locker is above
4 _i the steering wheel column, pictu-
. re above. Cab floor is reinforced
by grid made of integral beech
wood laths, picture below.

The circular plug in the front part
of the floor is user to eliminate
water, bottormn right picture.
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Picture above shows the installation of clutch, KdF is equipped with mechanically operating brakes. Manual parking brake is
brake and accelerator pedals. Bakelite rofler on  mechanically connected to service brakes and controls the brakes by means
the top of accelerator pedal improves the th- of steel cables. the small picture on the rmght shows wingnuts and brackets
rottfe actuating when driving in rough terrain. used for fixing front seats on the floor.

Air vents below door are a part of heating system and lead the warm air from the engine compartment to the cab. Heating
has, howsver, very low efficiency and the warm air is hardly able to warm up the driveris boots. Note also the sheet metal box

for storing documents located on the body side left to the steering colurmn.
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Lower left picture shows detail of the fuel cock and

its protection against breakage.

This particular vehic-
le is fitted with riffe
holder for 4 rifles
Mauser M 98k
Four clamps are lo-
cated on the tubular
strut just behind the
front seals, brac-
kets for holding the
rifle gunstocks are
focated on the cab
floor npext to the
central tunnel.

[

Gun Holders
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Fictures on this page show parts of battery winterising kit. Battery was lo-
cated in wooden box. This box was connected with warm air duct by a piece
of tube (see rounded opening on the bottom left picture] which heated the

pattery when the engine was runming. When the engine was stopped the
battery was heated by gasoline burner shown on the left top picture. Note
also the original lettering on the box lid and operation manual.

Battery
w__interisin.




Clamp lamp with two bulbs, made by HELLA, picture above right, was a part of standard vehicular accessories. | could be con-
nected by Bosch plug to the socket on the dashbosrd. The keyring with VW logo is original.

Bottom left picture shows standard first aid kit. The box having
X

dimensions 340 x 180 x 100 mm contains pressure banda-
ges, plaster bandages, bandsge for bur-ups and gunshot
wounds, three-tip shawl, splint, scissors, scalpels, tweezers,
tincture of iodine, and talcum powder disinfectant.

The 5 litre bottle for drinking water, picture above, was not a
part of vehicular accessories but being in original condition it is
a nice example of contemporary gear.
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Fictures on this page show KdF wheels.
Mote the difference between front (top left
and bottom right pictures] and rear wheel

ese wheels are wearing ver gte coj of original tires. This tire pattern appeared In the second half of the war.
spare wheel shown on the central picture has the wheel cap which was typical for the first KdF production series
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Rear towing hooks are connected by Front mudguards are reinforced by Rear position light with its bracket is shown
rod forming rear bumper, picture . e on the picture above.
above. Note also hinged reflector.

T b

Detail shown above is the opening for  Picture sbove shows the cab door hin-
starting crank located on the rear ge, viewed from inside. e picture above. The handles themselves
part of engine compartment. were the same ke internal ones.
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The spare wheel shown on the picture
below is wearing a brand new tire
which is a copy of the original one.

Top right picture shows the inner side
of wheel disc. These discs with riveted
rims were made by manufacturers
Kronprinz or Hering.

Because of rather low load on the front axie
the front shock absorbers are rather small
and only 140 mm long, bottom left picture.
The front end could be easily hoisted manual-
Iy when necessary.




Steering worm and sector gearbox is instafled directly on the axle
on the KdF 166 Schwimmwagen. Note the traling arms, radius ted to steering arm a 1owden actuating bra




Bottom right pictures show the rear axle traiing
arm and wheel hub reduction gear. Giving higher
ground clearance the reduction gear impr
cross-country ability remarsably.
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